
Simon W. Baker   B.Ed  MBA  MISPAL
Chief Executive

HEALTH OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL – REVISED AGENDA

Date: Wednesday, 12 September 2018

Time: 2.00 pm

Venue: The Council Chamber, Moorlands House, Leek

4 September 2018

PART 1
1. Apologies for Absence. 

2. Notification of Substitute Members, if any. 

3. To Approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting. (Pages 3 - 6)

4. Minutes of the Last Meeting of the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee. (Pages 
7 - 14)

5. Urgent Items of Business, if any. (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman). 

6. Declaration of Interests: 
 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
 Other Interests

7. Diabetic  Eye Screening Clinics - Howard King, Managing Director of Specialist 
Services, Midlands Partnership NHS Foundation Trust. (Pages 15 - 18)

8. Mental Health Support for Young People with Eating Disorders - Karen Clowes, 
CAMHS Service Manager & Julia Matthews, Highly Specialist Systemic Family 
Psychotherapist, North Staffordshire Combined Healthcare NHS Trust. 
(Presentation) 

9. Questions to Portfolio Holders, if any. 

(At least two clear days notice required, in writing, to the Proper Officer in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 15).

10. Leek Moorlands Hospital - Update 

Public Document Pack



11. Work Programme. (Pages 19 - 20)

Any additional items to be added to the Work Programme:-

i) Chairman’s items;
ii) Members items;

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Membership of Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel
Councillor B A Hughes (Chair) Councillor J T Jones (Vice-Chair)
Councillor R Alcock Councillor C J S Atkins
Councillor Cawley Councillor E Fallows
Councillor K Flunder Councillor I Herdman
Councillor L D Lea Councillor G Lockett
Councillor L A Malyon Councillor T McNicol
Councillor C Pearce Councillor D Price
Councillor J Redfern Councillor T Riley
Councillor H Sheldon MBE Councillor J Walley
Councillor P Wood Councillor R Ward



1

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

HEALTH OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL MEETING

Minutes

WEDNESDAY, 9 MAY 2018
PRESENT: Councillor B A Hughes (Chair) 

Councillors R Alcock, B Cawley, E Fallows, I Herdman, J T Jones, 
L D Lea, L A Malyon, T McNicol, J Redfern, T Riley, 
H Sheldon MBE, J Walley and R Ward.

IN ATTENDANCE: Cllr D Ogden – Cabinet Support Member

APOLOGIES: Councillors C J S Atkins, G Lockett, C Pearce, D Price and P Wood

1 NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS.

There were none. 

2 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING.

DECIDED: That the Minutes of the Meeting held on the 14th June 2017 be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

3 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING OF THE HEALTHY STAFFORDSHIRE 
SELECT COMMITTEE.

DECIDED: That the Minutes of the Meeting of the Healthy Staffordshire Select 
Committee held on 30th January 2018 be noted.

4 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS.

There were none.

5 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS:

Agenda No. Member Declaring 
Interest

Nature of Interest

Non specific Cllr J. Redfern Other – Employed in a 
non-clinical role at 
UHNM.

Non specific Cllr J. Jones Other – Employed by 
WMAS.

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 9 May 2018

2

Non specific Cllr T. Riley
Other – A member of 
the family is an NHS 

employee.

6 QUESTIONS TO PORTFOLIO HOLDERS, IF ANY.

There were none.

7 NORTH STAFFORDSHIRE COMBINED HEALTHCARE NHS TRUST 
(NSCHT) ANNUAL UPDATE - ANDREW HUGHES, DIRECTOR OF 
STRATEGY, DEVELOPMENT AND ESTATES.

The Panel received a presentation from Andrew Hughes, Director of Strategy, 
Development and Estates of the North Staffordshire Combined Healthcare NHS 
Trust. This included:

 An overview of the mental health services provided and area covered
 Care Quality Commission (CQC) Service Ratings
 Approach and Vision 
 Statistical information
 Accessibility
 Recovery
 Staff engagement
 Localities and working at scale
 Leek and Biddulph locality
 Successes and achievements

Discussion took place around the increased reliance on the voluntary sector, the 
innovative practice at a surgery in Cheadle and the Memorial Hall in Ipstones which 
had a consulting room for the voluntary sector to use.  

A member of the Panel queried some issues with electronic recording, staff 
engagement, recruitment and rates of supervision within the latest CQC report.  The 
officer responded to the effect, that the NSCHT had implemented a new electronic 
recording system and issues with Wi-Fi blind spots had now improved. Issues 
identified in supervision were around managerial supervision and not in relation to 
clinical supervision. The recruitment of staff was a national challenge. 

A further question was raised in relation to adolescent eating disorders and it was 
confirmed that at present there wasn’t a separate service for younger people with 
this disorder. 

Concern was also expressed around the out of hours service for mental health and 
the 1 hour waiting time target for the RAID team (rapid assessment interface and 
discharge). A request was made for a central point of contact for ambulance crews 
and additional training in triage for mental health. 

Andrew advised that the out of hours service was underfunded, NSCHT spent time 
in the Control Room on a fortnightly basis and that the 1 hour waiting time for RAID 
was nationally set. 

Page 4



Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 9 May 2018

3

Members shared their experiences of vulnerable people in the community, increased 
numbers of people with dementia and the need for more GP cover.

The Chair thanked the officer for attending the meeting and providing an interesting 
presentation. 

DECIDED: That the presentation be noted.

8 WORK PROGRAMME.

The Panel considered its Work Programme and agreed the items listed, subject to, 
an item being added in relation to young people and mental health.

At this point in the meeting the Panel discussed alternative start times and flexibility 
on the day of the week for the meetings of the Panel to be held.

DECIDED:  That the Panel’s Work Programme for 2018/19 be agreed.

The meeting closed at 3.06 pm

_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

Minutes of the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee Meeting held on 9 July 
2018

Present: Johnny McMahon (Chairman)

Attendance

Charlotte Atkins
Janet Eagland
Ann Edgeller
Phil Hewitt
Alan Johnson
Janet Johnson
Dave Jones

Alastair Little
Paul Northcott (Vice-Chairman)
Jeremy Pert
Carolyn Trowbridge
Ian Wilkes
Victoria Wilson

Apologies: Jessica Cooper, Barbara Hughes, Kath Perry, Bernard Peters and 
Ross Ward

PART ONE

7. Declarations of Interest

There were none on this occasion.

8. Minutes of the Joint Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee Accountability 
Session with South Staffordshire and Shropshire Healthcare NHS Foundation 
Trust and Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent Partnership Trust held on 10 May 2018

RESOLVED That the minutes of the Joint Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee 
Accountability Session held on 10 May 2018 be confirmed and signed by the Chairman

9. Minutes of the Joint Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee Accountability 
Session with North Staffordshire Combined NHS Trust held on 4 June 2018

RESOLVED That the minutes of the Joint Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee 
Accountability Session held on 4 June 2018 be confirmed and signed by the Chairman

10. Minutes of the meeting held on 11 June 2018

With regard to Minute 2, the Chairman explained that the letter to the Independent 
Reconfiguration Panel had been written to again and all members would receive a copy 
of the correspondence following the meeting.

With regard to Minute 3, a member asked why the University Hospital North Midlands 
had not responded to the Committees request for more information on the financial 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



- 2 -

stability of the health economy in the county.  Officers informed members that they had 
spoken to the Trust and the information should be with the Committee within the week.

RESOLVED That the minutes of the meeting held on 11 June 2018 be confirmed and 
signed by the Chairman

11. Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership  - Mental Health and Child Care

Caroline Donovan, Chief Executive Officer, North Staffordshire Combined Healthcare 
Trust (NSCHT) and Senior Responsible Officer (SRO) of the Mental Health Work stream 
of the Sustainability and Transformation Partnership (STP); Mr Abid Khan, Clinical Lead 
for Mental Health; and Jon O’Brien, Director of Operations and Programme Director of 
Mental Health gave a presentation summarising the STP Programme Vision and 
Workstream Overview.  The programmes scope covered:

 Children and Young People
 Integrated Physical and Mental Health
 Suicide Prevention
 Out of Area Placement
 Mental Health Crisis/Urgent Care

The Committee were informed that these were in line with a national taskforce which 
had produced a report setting out nine transformation deliverables which would be 
achieved by 2020. 

Within the Children, Adolescent and Mental Health Service (CAMHS) work stream, it 
was explained that all children with eating disorders were prioritised and should be seen 
within one week dependant on their need.  It was acknowledged that this was far from 
satisfactory and that every effort was made to reduce this.  

Integrating services for people with Physical and Mental Health Services should see a 
more co-ordinated approach.  There has been significant investment in both the North 
and South of the County particularly around the frail elderly services which had seen a 
reduced the number of patients having to go into the hospital and a significant reduction 
in the number of days spent waiting to leave hospital.  This was particularly the case in 
the Royal Stoke Hospital mainly down to the restructuring of locality teams and ways of 
working. 

Recruitment and workforce planning is the biggest challenge for the Trusts after finance.  
The Committee heard that nationally there is a Mental Health five year forward plan 
which ideally would see a growth of 309 workers across Staffordshire.  This could be 
done given the finance but currently, the growth was hoped to be 85 posts over both 
organisations.

There is a need to invest in Mental Health services with current STP spend being 9% of 
the its total spend.  This needs to be closer to 13% which was proving to be a real 
challenge.

A Member asked how the Trust would be working with employers to help get people 
with mental health issues into employment.  The SRO said that she was talking to both 

Page 8



- 3 -

public and private sector organisations and there was a specialist employment service 
team which was seeing progress.  Dr Abid Khan informed the Committee that this was a 
10 year strategy and the third sector where also an important partner.

Following another question from a Member, the SRO explained that two organisations 
(North and South) providing the same services as opposed to one was a topic of 
discussion.  However, both Trusts provided a good service and it was more important 
that the two collaborate and integrate with the voluntary sector.  Dr Khan felt that it was 
not a draw back as there was a close working relationship and when one needed 
support the other always tried to provide it.  The Member felt that there were different 
issues in communities in the North and South of the County, both proving challenging in 
the past.  The SRO stated that there was deprivation in both areas and that integration 
into community networks to prevent crisis points was key. 

A Member felt that the transition between Child and Adult Mental Health Services could 
be very traumatic and asked what the trust was doing to ensure a seamless handover of 
services.  The SRO stated that this was an issue but the Trust was making it a priority to 
get it right.  Dr Khan informed the Committee that policies had been changed in the past 
to enable smooth transition but more needed to be done.  A particularly difficult time was 
when children left education or moved out of the area to go to University and then found 
a delay in accessing services in a new geographical area.

A Member asked if there was a difference in mortality rates for patients with mental 
health conditions in the North and South of the County.  Dr Khan said that mortality 
rates were fairly similar but in some areas however, certain types of illness where higher 
than in others.  Suicide for example, was particularly high in Stoke on Trent and 
therefore a strategy had been developed to tackle that specific issue.  A Public Health 
Consultant had been appointed to analyse this information to ensure that issues aren’t 
missed.  

A question was asked about children with eating disorders and when they became 
urgent cases.  It was felt that any eating disorder should be treated as urgent and that 
within four weeks a child’s health could be seriously affected.  The SRO agreed that this 
was a massive issue and that funding in the past had not been adequate.  However, 
there had been significant increases in investment in the past three years in both the 
North and South of the County.

The Chairman suggested that the STP had the opportunity to give the greatest benefit to 
the largest number in the community, for example those who had long term physical 
conditions and who also have depression or mental health issues.  This would also have 
an effect on the NHS purse.  The SRO explained that the growth of I app services has 
been a success and the Trust is very proactive in this area.  There are more services 
available and the integrated team working was improving accessibility.

One of the biggest gains the Trust could make over the next two years was that around 
working with primary care providers and having a proactive approach to community 
integration.  

The Chairman was aware that there was a lot of research into adolescent mental health 
and the effect of social media and asked how this was being addressed.  The SRO 

Page 9



- 4 -

agreed that this was an issue and informed the Committee that there was currently a 
pilot programme taking place in the North of the County which involved a digital solution 
or aid which may work particularly well for those people who never access the serve or 
who wouldn’t necessarily meet the service access requirements.

The Chairman felt that it would be difficult to allocate funding effectively if there wasn’t 
sufficient workforce to carry out functions.  Jon O’Brien agreed that this was a risk but 
investment needed to be smart and the Trust would need to look at roles, particularly in 
the community and how they were functioning but there was a need to invest wisely and 
innovatively.  In response to a further question, Members were informed that this would 
be monitored by the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG).

A Member asked how we were recruiting sufficient staff to fulfil our duties particularly 
around CAMHS for example physiologists.  The SRO agreed that this was a challenging 
area and the Trust was having to think differently about its workforce and was trying to 
train and invest in current staff and develop roles and provide peer support in order to 
grow and develop teams.

With regards to training, a Member asked if this affected safeguarding which had been 
an issue at the last CQC inspection.  Dr Khan said that both Trusts had been re-
inspected recently and had action plans in place to ensure they were compliant.

Dr Khan reminded the Committee that Dementia and End of Life services were equally 
important to CAMHS and that there was a lot of joint working in these areas.  A Member 
asked if a person with dementia could be flagged so that they are assessed quicker in 
A&E as waiting can be very destressing for the individuals.  The SRO said that a lot of 
work was being done around this area and also the transition between wards and care 
homes.   Dr Khan also reminded members that the sharing of notes between partners 
should help to reduce delay and confusion.

The Chairman summed up the debate.

RESOLVED The Committee asked for more information on:
a) The place based approach and the impact this is making on patients and service 

users.
b) Quality of life and the approach to long term conditions and mental health.
c) Information on the research surrounding social media and possible services to 

support treatment for these affected by it.
d) Workforce recruitment and retention.

12. STP Prevention Programme

Richard Harling, Director of Health and Care and STP lead on the Prevention 
Programme, Tony Bullock, Lead Commissioner and Lianne Brook Smith, ????? gave a 
presentation on the STP Prevention Programme.

The six population groupings which are defined by age and other key characteristics 
are:

 Children
 Teenagers

Page 10



- 5 -

 Maternity
 Working Age
 Adults with Multiple Complexities
 Older Age

The new car models have 4 outcomes:
 Preventative Pathways
 Healthy Environments
 Supportive Communities
 Digital and Voice

The plans for each group will be tailored to respond to the specific circumstances in 
each area which have been based on the 8 District and Borough geographies.

One of the main risks associated with the prevention programme was that it relied on 
others changing the way they work and historically there hadn’t been much success of 
working with the communities to change culture. 

As part of the presentation, the Committee looked at the anticipated impact of the 
changes for example, by reducing the number of falls there would be a reduction in A&E 
admissions and possibly social care support when people returned home.

More connections need to be made in the communities, a lot goes on at a local level but 
it needs to be recognised and more connections made to realise its potential and forge 
links between partners.

Healthy Literature has to be fit for purpose and understood and there is a piece of work 
being done to understand what the public want and how much of it is understood.

The Chair asked what the programmes overall aim was.  The Director responded to say 
that the work was being done by Public Health prior to STP and the overall aim is to 
improve the health and well-being of the County but also to reduce the need on care 
services.

Following a question on the measures used to monitor the success of the programme, 
the Director responded to say that Healthy life expectance is the overall measure used, 
however, there are a number of other measures such as a reduction in falls which can 
also be used.

A Member asked if the Health Life expectancy programme would be focused on the 
worst wards in an area (hotpots) or would it be accessed by the whole of the County.    

If was felt that Obesity and Diabetes go hand in hand and the Committee asked how it 
was intended to communicate with some of the communities and would it be based 
though groups or individuals.  The Director felt that there was a need for a conversation 
with people about taking responsibility for their own health and it may be beneficial to 
target communities as well as individuals.

The Chairman was concerned that there was very little mention of diet in the prevention 
programme and yet it was a key component to good health. Again the need for a mixed 

Page 11



- 6 -

approach of targeting communities and individuals would be needed.  The Director 
stated that activities such as cookery classes would not be arranged directly by the local 
authority however it was acknowledged that the community may want to coordinate 
such an activity.  A Member explained that these were happening at a Childrens Centre 
they were aware of.  This could also be part of building a resilient community and 
introducing different age groups to each other.

Digital and the use of social media as a means of providing information was discussed.  
The STP was looking at the possibility of offering an online catalogue of what 
information and support.

The Chair felt that exercise and a sensible quality of life isn’t written into the normal 
working day and asked if there was anything we could do with Districts/Boroughs to 
improve e.g. housing developments to encourage walking or reduce the number of 
takeaways or shops selling alcohol.  Also the quality of housing and the effects of damp 
and public open space were also cited as an issue.

The Lead Commissioner informed the Committee that there was a proposal to develop a 
digital stream which would bring information together with motivational and monitoring 
devises so you could monitor activity, get recipes and measure a healthy age etc. all in 
one place.  Members were concerned that this type of app was already being used by 
the people who were health conscious but it was those people who were not active that 
we should be targeting. The Director added that face to face discussions could not be 
replaced but the digital offer could support individuals and put them in touch with others 
in the community providing a local support network.

There was a potential risk that if a programme was to successful it could lead to service 
budgets having to be redirected, but this was a number of years down the line.

Regarding obesity, a Member suggested all schools introduce a one mile run for pupils 
every morning.

The Chair thanked Officers for their attendance.

RESOLVED That the STP: 
a. Monitor the improvement of Healthy life expectancy 
b. Talk to the District and Borough councils to establish what information they hold 

which may be useful to the prevention programme. 
c. That diet and food be included in the prevention programme

13. Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee Work Programme 2018/19

The Scrutiny and Support Manager outlined proposed changes to the work programme 
for 2018-19.

RESOLVED That the work Programme 2018-19 be approved.
 

14. Exclusion of the Public

Page 12



- 7 -

RESOLVED - That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business which involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in the paragraphs Part 1 of Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended) indicated below.

15. Adult Learning Disability Community Offer 2022 Programme

The Committee considered a report on the Adult Learning Community Offer 2022 
Programme.  

(Exemption Paragraph 4) 

Chairman

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

September 2018 

Diabetic Eye Screening 

Prepared for Health Panel, Staffordshire Moorlands District Council on 12th 
September 2018.  

Background 

Diabetic eye screening is a key part of diabetes care. People with diabetes are at 
risk of damage from diabetic retinopathy, a condition that can lead to sight loss if it's 
not treated. Screening is a way of detecting the condition early before a person 
notices any changes to their vision. Diabetic retinopathy doesn't usually cause any 
noticeable symptoms in the early stages. Everyone with diabetes requires eye 
screening at least every year. 

Diabetic eye screening started in Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent in 2005, at which 
point there were approximately 30,000 patients to screen. Opticians on the high 
street were contracted under a service level agreement.  

Currently in Staffordshire we have 72,500 patients and each month we add 
approximately 250 more diabetic people to our register. We are expecting to add 
approximately 2,000 patients per year going forward and if there are diabetes 
initiatives in the local area, this is likely to increase. 

Increasing uptake of screening 

The local programme has had an uptake that is consistently lower than the national 
average, in large part due to the inherent problems of the optometry model of 
delivery. 

Feedback from patients is that they are reluctant to visit opticians for the fear of 
having to purchase new glasses. This is clearly a barrier to attendance for patients 
on lower incomes. 

Opticians only offer a few diabetic eye screening appointments per week at certain 
specified times and some practices insist that these are linked to an eye 
examination. The times and dates for these screening appointments can change 
from week to week. 

To address some of these issues our service has been evolving by using employed 
and qualified NHS staff alongside high street opticians. During 2017/2018 almost half 
of all patients were screened by NHS qualified staff, who specialise in diabetic eye 
screening and grading. We have successfully screened many patients who 
previously have not engaged with opticians on the high street and saved sight as a 
consequence.   

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



 

September 2018 

 

Following good practice 

Data from other screening programmes indicates that operating dedicated NHS 
screening clinics significantly increases uptake.  

The delivery of screening by a smaller number of qualified screener-graders, whose 
sole function is diabetic eye screening increases quality, but also makes the delivery 
of effective training to drive further quality improvement much more practical. 

Opticians are static and are unable to target areas of greatest need where patients 
are most at risk of developing sight threatening diabetic retinopathy.  

Engaging patients 

Dr Andrew Brown, the clinical lead, has personally engaged with the Diabetes UK 
group in Stoke-on-Trent. He also sits on the Staffordshire Diabetic Network, which 
has representatives from both national and local Diabetes UK. These changes have 
been discussed at diabetic eye screening programme board meetings, which have a 
patient representative as part of its core membership.  

The proposed changes have been discussed with patients when they attend for 
screening and also when patients call to book an appointment. A patient survey was 
promoted to patients only 11 people replied. Six people said they would prefer their 
future screening to be at a town centre NHS site and four people said in a GP 
practice or health centre. Nine people described their experience of being screened 
at an NHS screening site across Staffordshire as excellent. The other two people 
had not yet been screened at an NHS site.  

Changing the model 

Based on the evidence from elsewhere and patient feedback, it was agreed that 
diabetic eye screening would take place in dedicated NHS screening clinics. This will 
enable us to actively target patients and areas of greatest need. 

From 1st April 2018, the service began a phased introduction. By 1st January 2019 all 
screening will be delivered by qualified NHS screeners in NHS locations across 
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent. 

Patients are able to book into any NHS clinic and we will be continually assessing 
uptake and capacity rates and will react with further clinics in the area if required to 
meet demand.  
 

Page 16



 

September 2018 

At present we provide one clinic per week in Leek Moorlands Hospital, which is 
enough capacity to see patients who live in that area.  In addition one clinic per week 
is held in Biddulph; at present this session is providing adequate capacity required 
for the area. People who require a weekend appointment can attend a clinic held in 
Newcastle on Saturdays. 

The current list of where screenings are to take place from 1st October 2018 can be 
found on our website here (North Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent sites are on page 
3). 

We are currently looking to develop an online booking system to help patients 
manage their future appointments and intend on implementing a text message 
reminder service so that patients are prompted about upcoming appointments. 

 

Page 17

https://www.staffordshireandstokeontrent.nhs.uk/NHS%20Screening%20Locations%20Jun%202018.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
Work Programme 2018/19

Date Items for Agenda
Diabetic  Eye Screening Clinics12 September 2018
NSCHT – Mental Health Support for Young People with eating disorders

Midlands Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Annual Update TBC13 February 2019
Raising Awareness of Myalgic Encephalomyelitis (M.E.) TBC

TBC Update on the Withdrawal of  Funding For Hearing Aids

Cancer End of Life Pathways – SCC leading the scrutiny process
Sustainability and Transformation Plan – SCC leading the scrutiny process

Key Organisations to Invite/ Schedule Annually

Royal Stoke University Hospital
North Staffordshire CCG
Midlands Partnership NHS Foundation Trust.
North Staffordshire Combined Health Care NHS Trust
Healthwatch Staffordshire 

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To Approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting.
	4 Minutes of the Last Meeting of the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee.
	7 Diabetic  Eye Screening Clinics - Howard King, Managing Director of Specialist Services, Midlands Partnership NHS Foundation Trust.
	11 Work Programme.

